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Frequently Asked Questions 
IDEAL Qualitative M&E Program Improvement Awards Request for Applications (RFA) 

 

FAQ Sections: 

APPLICANT ELIGIBILITY 

TECHNICAL GUIDANCE 

PROGRAMMATIC GUIDANCE 

APPLICATION EVALUATION CRITERIA 

USEFUL LINKS 
  

APPLICANT ELIGIBILITY 
Q: Is it possible to apply as a consortium of two or three national organizations?  

Yes, you can apply as a consortium of multiple national organizations. Even if multiple organizations 
collaborate on an application, one organization must be designated as the lead applicant and serve as the 
primary point of contact with IDEAL. This lead entity must meet the eligibility criteria required in Section C 
of the RFA.   

Q: Can the applicant be an individual researcher or research team? 

Per Section C in the RFA, individuals and sole proprietorships are not eligible for funding. The lead 
applicant must be US or non-US non-governmental organizations (NGOs), for-profit organizations, research 
institutions, or Higher Education Institutions (HEI) that can contribute to IDEAL’s strategic objective of 
promoting systems-level approaches to improving the design, implementation, and overall effectiveness of 
emergency and non-emergency Title II activities. Research teams must be affiliated with one of these 
entities, which meets the eligibility criteria in Section C.  

Q: Does the applicant already need to be partnered with a USAID-funded food program? 

No, the applicant does not need to be partnered with a USAID-funded food program. The lead applicant 
must have received USAID funding the past three years as a prime recipient or sub recipient. Please review 
the full eligibility criteria in Section C for more details.  

Q: Are BHA-funded Title II activities limited to DFSA/RFSA activities? 

No, BHA-funded Title II activities are not limited to the DFSA/RFSA activities. BHA funds various activities 
through Title II, including emergency activities.  

Q: We are looking at a proposal to support collection of information on-farm, but it would integrate 
both qualitative and quantitative data. Is this within the boundaries of this RFA? 

IDEAL cannot confirm the eligibility of specific ideas and we encourage applicants to carefully examine the 
RFA to determine if their idea would be eligible for funding. Both quantitative and qualitative methods can 
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be utilized in the activity, but the focus should be on qualitative M&E and how qualitative methods are 
well-integrated with any quantitative data collection as described in the webinar.  

Please remember that IDEAL is soliciting applications that strengthen the capacity of USAID Title II 
implementers to incorporate qualitative analysis into monitoring and evaluation. Applications will support 
the development, testing, packaging, and sharing of processes, systems, and tools to improve qualitative 
data collection, analysis, and utilization in support of the BHA strategy and policy. 

Q: The RFA requires applicants to have had USAID funding within the past three years. Is there 
flexibility around this? Our IDEAL Micro Grant application has been delayed due to COVID, which 
prevents us from having USAID funding in the past 3 years. 

All lead applicants must have received USAID funding as a prime or sub between January 1, 2018 and 
January 25, 2021. This is just over three years.  

Q: Does it mean that individuals who have never obtained funding before are not eligible for this 
grant? 

Individuals are not eligible to apply per the Eligibility Criteria in Section C. Organizations that have not 
received USAID funding as a prime or sub in the past three years are not eligible to apply on their own. 
Organizations without USAID funding experience can apply in partnership with an organization that meets 
the criteria to be a lead applicant.  

Q: We understand the proposal needs to be implemented in a country that has had BHA Title II 
funding in FY19, 20, or 21, but does the applicant need to have had funding in that same country in the 
past? 

No, applicants do not need to have received funding to implement past activities in the same country 
where the organization will implement their activity under this RFA. 

Q: TANGO International is our organization's M&E partner (sub-awardee) in a BHA funded Title II 
RFSA. Is our organization eligible to apply for the IDEAL Qualitative M&E award for this same RFSA? 

No IDEAL consortium member (Save the Children, TANGO International, Mercy Corps and The Kaizen 
Company) may receive funding directly or indirectly from a Qualitative M&E PIA award. However, IDEAL 
consortium members may be partners implementing an activity that is the subject of qualitative research 
under the Qualitative M&E PIA award. 

Q: Can you please define “legally recognized”? Do the organizations need to be legally registered? If 
an organization is several years into the process of becoming legally registered, will that suffice? If an 
organization is running USAID-funded IFRP grant programs in the country, does that meet the 
requirement? 

Legal recognition depends highly on the laws of the specific country and does not necessarily mean legally 
registered with the national government. This legal recognition is best determined by your organization’s 
lawyers and the local government to confirm that you have the legal approval or authority to implement 
this project in the desired country.  

While governments may not apply for grants or receive funding through these awards, IDEAL encourages 
transparent communications and coordination with local governments for all proposed activities.  

Q: If an organization wants to propose a multi-country project, does it need to be legally recognized in 
both countries or will registration in one of the two countries be sufficient? 
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Yes, either the lead application or a collaborating partner need to be legally recognized in each of the 
countries where this activity will be implemented. IDEAL and USAID cannot fund applications where the 
implementer does not have the legal authority to implement activities in their target countries.  

Q: Does IDEAL have an idea of which countries will be targeted for the studies?  

Qualitative PIAs must be implemented in countries where USAID’s Bureau for Humanitarian Assistance 
funded Title II emergency or non-emergency activities in FY 2019, 2020 or 2021. The RFA references a 2019 
FFP report, which details specific locations of Title II programs.  

Q: Section B10 clarifies that the authorized geographic code is 937. Is there any limitation on the 
number of countries that the research can cover? 

There is no RFA restriction on the number of countries that can be covered as long as they are part of the 
authorized geographic code 937 and are eligible per the question above.   

Q: Are there any limitations on engaging individual experts (not organizations) in the countries of 
focus as part of a team managed by a third-country collaborating organization (different from the 
prime/lead organization)? 

The Prime/Lead organization, as well as all collaborating organizations included in each application, must 
follow USAID rules and regulations related to engaging individual experts, as well as local labor laws. As 
Save the Children Federation, Inc. is providing a sub-award under United States law, the Lead Applicant is, 
therefore, subject to the laws and regulations of the United States pertaining to sub-awards, including but 
not limited to the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (the “Super Circular”), as set forth in 2 CFR 200 and 2 CFR 700, the specific terms and 
conditions set forth in the Prime Award, and USAID’s Standard Provisions Fixed Amount Awards 
Attachment 6. Where appropriate “USAID” shall mean Save the Children Federation, Inc. and “recipient” 
shall mean “Lead Applicant.”  

Awards to non-U.S. organizations will be administered in accordance with the cost principles contained in 2 
CFR 200, Subpart E and USAID Standard Provisions for Non-U.S. Non-governmental Organizations. Please 
refer to Attachment 6 for applicable USAID Standard Provisions for Fixed Amount Awards for both US and 
non-US organizations.  

TECHNICAL GUIDANCE 
Q: Can IDEAL share the Qualitative Inquiry Planning Sheet (QuIPS) document? 

The QuIPS template is provided as Annex V of the USAID BHA / FFP Policy and Guidance for Monitoring, 
Evaluation, and Reporting for Development Food Security Activities 2.0. 

Q: How many priority areas could we target per RFA? Is there a limitation to target a specific number 
of priority areas to address their capacity and knowledge gaps? 

There is no assigned limit to the number of priorities that can be addressed in applications. Based on 
experience, we recommend just focusing on one or two primary areas to ensure the limited funding can 
significantly advance learnings related to the processes, systems, and tools. By trying to address multiple 
priority areas, applicants may find it difficult to sufficiently address the key gaps or create tools that are 
broadly utilized.  

Q: Is the emphasis on ground-truthing or implementing a methodology or assessing the utility of one 
by evaluating something already underway? 

https://www.fsnnetwork.org/sites/default/files/2021-02/QuIPS_one.pager_02082021.docx
https://pdf.usaid.gov/pdf_docs/PA00WM4H.pdf
https://pdf.usaid.gov/pdf_docs/PA00WM4H.pdf
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We are not prescriptive on this so either approach is welcome. IDEAL is interested in developing, testing, 
piloting, and scaling up of new or under-utilized approaches, systems, and processes that help the food 
security community to do better qualitative monitoring.  

PROGRAMMATIC GUIDANCE 
Q: Can computers be purchased under this RFA? Is there a maximum amount which can be utilized for 
computer software? 

Computers would be considered equipment and capital assets under this RFA. Per F4 in the RFA, 
“equipment with cumulative value less than $5,000 and computer software will be allowed in the budget if 
they are essential to the activity implementation.” There is no maximum amount set for computer 
software. 

Q: Is it possible that the tools and appendices that will be shared are in French for us as well as for our 
local partners? 

All application documents including appendices should be submitted to IDEAL in English. Final products, 
resources, and systems must be in English, but IDEAL encourages applicants to translate these learning 
materials into French and other languages as appropriate and useful. Translation could be included in the 
application’s plan for socialization of deliverables and budget.  

Q: Would translation costs be acceptable? 

Yes, translation costs for tools, systems, and resources produced by these grants are acceptable in the 
budget. 

Q: In light of COVID-19 constraints and risks, can the application consider only remote (non-presence) 
research activities for collecting primary data? 

The RFA does not restrict primary data collection methods. If the applicant determines that remote data 
collection is required, then we recommend that the applicant refer to the USAID Guide for Adopting 
Remote Monitoring Approaches During COVID-19. Per the scoring criteria in F1, each application should 
demonstrate how the activity will be adapted to the COVID-19 context, and applications should consider 
relevant COVID-19 restrictions, regulations, and best practices.  

Q: Is there any restriction on engaging staff of contracts or activities currently funded by BHA or 
their beneficiary populations as key informants? 

IDEAL cannot speak for specific organization-level policies and regulations utilized. The applicant should 
consider this when engaging staff of contracts or activities or their beneficiaries as key informants.  

Q: Would IDEAL consider a co-creation approach with the applicant to guide the focus of the research 
across 12 months, aimed at meeting the higher priorities of Title II implementing partners? 

All applicants will be treated equally and go through the standard review process using the scoring criteria 
described in the RFA. Before issuing final awards, IDEAL may seek clarification or provide guidance through 
issues letters and related discussions, but IDEAL will not be using a co-creation approach.  

Issuance of this RFA does not constitute an award commitment on the part of SC or USAID, nor does it 
commit SC or USAID to pay for the costs incurred in the submission of an application. SC and USAID reserve 
the right to reject any or all submissions received and to negotiate separately with an applicant, if such 
action is considered to be in the best interest of SC and the IDEAL donor, USAID.  

APPLICATION EVALUATION CRITERIA 
Q: What is precisely expected for the proposal we are supposed to prepare? 

https://www.usaid.gov/digital-development/covid19-remote-monitoring-guide
https://www.usaid.gov/digital-development/covid19-remote-monitoring-guide
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Please reference section F. Qualitative Application Evaluation Scoring Criteria to understand how the 
applications will be scored and what needs to be submitted.  

Q: On page 10, the RFA states, under Design and Implementation Plan and Implementation Timeline, 
that “This attachment should align with and complement the narrative application.” Please clarify 
what should be included in the narrative template and what should be included as an attachment.  

The attachment referenced here is Attachment 2: Qualitative Activity Schedule. This text has been updated 
in the RFA. The first tab in the Qualitative Activity Schedule provides details on what information should be 
included in this attachment. All other activity work plan details should be the application narrative.   

USEFUL LINKS 
• Webinar Resources:  

o Webinar Recording 
o Presentation Slides 

• Learn more about IDEAL 
• Learn more about the IDEAL Small Grants Program  
• COVID -19 Guidance and Resources 

o USAID COVID-19 Guidance for Implementing Partners  
o BHA Development Activity Guidance During COVID  
o BHA Humanitarian Activity Guidance During COVID  
o USAID Guide for Adopting Remote Monitoring Approaches During COVID-19 
o FSN Network COVID-19 Resources 

• Access IDEAL’s FAQ for Qualitative M&E for Food Security Activities during COVID-19 
• Access the P&G for Monitoring, Evaluation and Report for Development Food Security Activities 

V2.0 
• Access the Draft BHA Emergency Monitoring and Evaluation Guidance
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KuJq_ZCZmCY&feature=youtu.be
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KuJq_ZCZmCY&feature=youtu.be
https://www.fsnnetwork.org/sites/default/files/2021-02/Qualitative%20ME%20PIA%20Webinar%20Presentation%20Slides_0.pdf
http://www.fsnnetwork.org/ideal
http://www.fsnnetwork.org/small-grants-program
https://www.usaid.gov/work-usaid/resources-for-partners/covid-19-guidance-implementing-partners
https://www.usaid.gov/sites/default/files/documents/352986/External_Guidance_for_DFSA_in_COVID-19_FINAL_508_Compliant.pdf
https://www.usaid.gov/sites/default/files/documents/BHA_COVID-19_Emergency_Application_Guidance_FY2021_Dec_2020.pdf
https://www.usaid.gov/digital-development/covid19-remote-monitoring-guide
https://www.fsnnetwork.org/covid-19-resources
https://www.fsnnetwork.org/sites/default/files/Qual%20ME%20COVID-19%20FAQ_0.pdf
https://pdf.usaid.gov/pdf_docs/PA00WM4H.pdf
https://pdf.usaid.gov/pdf_docs/PA00WM4H.pdf
https://www.usaid.gov/bha-guidelines/draft-bha-emergency-me-guidance
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